
T
FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL

Agenda & Meeting Packet
July 20, 2022

Meeting will be held at the Municipal Building
2nd floor, Council Chambers

355 East Central Street
7:00 PM

A NOTE TO RESIDENTS: All citizens are welcome to attend public board and committee meetings in person.
Meetings are live-streamed by Franklin TV and shown on Comcast Channel 11 and Verizon Channel 29.
In an effort to maximize citizen engagement opportunities, citizens will be able to continue to participate
remotely via phone OR Zoom.

Link to access meeting via Zoom for July 20, 2022 Town Council Meeting:
● Zoom Link HERE -- Then click “Open Zoom”.
● Or copy and paste this URL into your browser: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87453391045
● Call-In Phone Number: Call 1-929-205-6099 and enter Meeting ID # 874 5339 1045 --Then press #

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIR
a. This meeting is being recorded by Franklin TV and shown on Comcast channel 11 and Verizon

Channel 29.  This meeting may be recorded by others.
b. Chair to identify members participating remotely.

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS
a. Citizens are welcome to express their views for up to three minutes on a matter that is not on

the agenda. The Council will not engage in a dialogue or comment on a matter raised during
Citizen Comments. The Town Council will give remarks appropriate consideration and may ask
the Town Administrator to review the matter.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. June 8, 2022
b. June 22, 2022

4. PROCLAMATIONS / RECOGNITIONS
a. Proclamation: Margaret (Peg) Simpson
b. Proclamation: Unified Basketball Team

5. APPOINTMENTS
a. 2022 Election Workers

6. HEARINGS - 7:00 pm - None Scheduled.
7. LICENSE TRANSACTIONS - None Scheduled.

https://www.franklinma.gov/home/pages/live-meetings-stream
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87453391045
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87453391045
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/3a._june_8_2022_tc_meeting_minutes_-draft_for_review.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/3b._june_22_2022_tc_meeting_minutes_-draft_for_review.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/5a._appointment_election_0.pdf


8. PRESENTATIONS / DISCUSSION
a. Presentation: Elks Rider Donation Presentation
b. Discussion: Disposition of Town-owned land containing South Franklin Meeting House

9. LEGISLATION FOR ACTION
a. Resolution 22-43: Gift Acceptance - Veterans’ Services Department ($2,000) (Motion to

Approve Resolution 22-43 - Majority Vote)
b. Resolution 22-44: Authoring Tax Increment Financing, Plansee USA LLC, 115 Constitution

Boulevard (Motion to Approve Resolution 22-44 - Majority Vote)
c. Resolution 22-45: Transfer of Care, Custody, Management and Control of Davis-Thayer

Elementary School from School Committee to Town Council (Motion to Approve Resolution
22-45 - Two Thirds Majority Vote)

d. Resolution 22-46: Gift Acceptance - Historical Commission ($2,000) (Motion to Approve
Resolution 22-46 - Majority Vote)

e. Resolution 22-47: Gift Acceptance - Disability Commission ($2,000) (Motion to Approve
Resolution 22-47 - Majority Vote)

f. Bylaw Amendment 22-881: Chapter 7 Affordable Housing Trust Fund: Add Vice Chair and Clerk
positions, 1st reading (Motion to Move Bylaw Amendment 22-881 to Second Reading -
Majority Vote)

g. Bylaw Amendment  22-882: Chapter 4 Admin. of Govt.: Authorize Town Clerk to make format
changes, 1st reading (Motion to Move Bylaw Amendment 22-882 to Second Reading -
Majority Vote)

h. Resolution 22-55: Town Council’s Local Authorization and Approval for Conduct of 2022 State
Elections, as Required by Chapter 92 of Legislative Acts of 2022 (Motion to Approve
Resolution 22-55 - Majority Vote)

10. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
a. “Friendly 40B” Application
b. Town Administrator Five Year Fiscal Forecast

11. SUBCOMMITTEE & AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS
a. Capital Budget Subcommittee
b. Budget Subcommittee
c. Economic Development Subcommittee

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
13. COUNCIL COMMENTS
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. Collective Bargaining
i. Exemption #3: Collective Bargaining (DPW, Custodians, Facilities, Library, Firefighters,

Police Sergeants) - To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining if an open
meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the public body and
the chair so declares.

15. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION
a. Resolution 22-48: Ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement Between the Public Library

Staff Association and the Town of Franklin (Motion to approve Resolution 22-48 - Majority
Vote)

b. Resolution 22-49: Ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement Between the DPW Union and
the Town of Franklin (Motion to approve Resolution 22-49 - Majority Vote)

c. Resolution 22-50:Ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement Between the Custodians Union
and the Town of Franklin (Motion to approve Resolution 22-50 - Majority Vote)

https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/8b._old_south_church.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9a._22-43.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9b._1_22-44.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9b._1_22-44.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9c._1_22-45_memo_-_davis_thayer.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9c._1_22-45_memo_-_davis_thayer.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9d-e._memo_22-46_47_res_22-46.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9e._22-47.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9f._22-881.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9f._22-881.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9g._22-882.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9g._22-882.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9h._22-55.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9h._22-55.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/friendly_chapter_40b_process.docx.pdf


d. Resolution 22-51: Ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement Between the Public Facilities
Union and the Town of Franklin (Motion to approve Resolution 22-51 - Majority Vote)

e. Resolution 22-52:Ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement Between the Professional
Firefighters of Franklin and the Town of Franklin (Motion to approve Resolution 22-52 -
Majority Vote)

f. Resolution 22-53: Ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement Between the Franklin Police
Sergeants Union and the Town of Franklin (Motion to approve Resolution 22-53 - Majority
Vote)

16. ADJOURN

Note:
Two-Thirds Vote: requires 6 votes
Majority Vote: requires majority of members present and voting



1 

 

FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

June 8, 2022 

 

A meeting of the Town Council was held on Wednesday, June 8, 2022, at the Municipal Building, 2nd 

Floor, Council Chambers, 355 East Central Street, Franklin, MA. Councilors present: Brian Chandler, 

Theodore Cormier-Leger, Robert Dellorco, Cobi Frongillo, Melanie Hamblen, Glenn Jones (via Zoom), 

Thomas Mercer, Deborah Pellegri, Patrick Sheridan. Councilors absent: None. Administrative personnel 

in attendance: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator; Mark Cerel, Town Attorney; Alecia Alleyne, Assistant 

to the Town Administrator.  

 

CALL TO ORDER: ►Chair Mercer called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Chair Mercer called for a 

moment of silence. All recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: ►Chair Mercer reviewed the following as posted on the agenda. A Note to 

Residents: All citizens are welcome to attend public board and committee meetings in person. Meetings 

are live-streamed by Franklin TV and shown on Comcast Channel 11 and Verizon Channel 29. In an 

effort to maximize citizen engagement opportunities, citizens will be able to continue to participate 

remotely via phone or Zoom. He announced that this meeting is being recorded by Franklin TV and 

shown on Comcast channel 11 and Verizon Channel 29. This meeting may be recorded by others. He 

announced that Councilor Jones will be attending the meeting remotely. He stated that he asked Councilor 

Pellegri to sit in as clerk for tonight’s meeting.   

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS: None.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: ►April 13, 2022 and May 4, 2022. ►MOTION to Approve the April 

13, 2022 meeting minutes by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. No discussion. ►ROLL CALL 

VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-

YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. ►MOTION to 

Approve the May 4, 2022 meeting minutes by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. No discussion. 

►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; 

Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, 

Absent-0. 

 

PROCLAMATIONS/RECOGNITIONS: ►Proclamation - Franklin Flyers Youth Hockey Team. 

►Chair Mercer stated that this is a proclamation recognizing the Franklin Flyers Youth Hockey Team. 

►Councilor Cormier-Leger read aloud the proclamation honoring the Franklin Flyers Youth Hockey 

Team for winning the South Shore Conference championship.  

 

►Proclamation - Franklin High School Theatre Company. ►Chair Mercer stated that this is a 

proclamation recognizing the Franklin High School Theatre Company. ►Councilor Frongillo read aloud 

the proclamation honoring the Franklin High School Theatre Company on being selected as a finalist in 

the 2022 Massachusetts High School Drama Festival. ►Councilor Jones stated that he was very happy 

for this group. He stated that the group’s performances are tremendous. He congratulated the group for 

their hard work.  

 

Chair Mercer declared a two-minute recess.  

 

APPOINTMENTS: None.  

 

HEARINGS: None.  



2 

 

 

LICENSE TRANSACTIONS: ►License Modification: Change of Hours - PH Franklin, Inc. d/b/a 

Raillery Public House, Located at 280 Franklin Village Drive, Franklin, MA 02038. ►Councilor 

Pellegri read the license transaction. ►MOTION to Approve the request by PH Franklin House, Inc. 

d/b/a Raillery Public House to change the opening time of 11:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. on Sundays, by 

Pellegri. SECOND by Dellorco. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that the applicant is asking for an 

extension of one hour on Sundays. ►Councilor Chandler complimented Mr. Glenn Stowers on the 

Raillery Public House. ►Councilor Pellegri stated that opening one hour early bothers her. ►Mr. 

Stowers (via Zoom) discussed the request for the one-hour change. He stated that he wanted the hours 

changed to include brunch. ►Councilor Jones said that according to Franklin bylaws, there needs to be 

food of sustenance during the period of serving alcohol; he wanted to make sure they were aware of that 

bylaw. ►Mr. Stowers stated yes they are. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-

YES; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; 

Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 
 

►New Farmer Winery-Farmers Market License - Crave Mead, LLC d/b/a Crave Mead, Located at 7 

Main St., Unit 1, Blackstone, MA 01504. ►Councilor Pellegri read the license transaction. ►MOTION 

to Approve the issuance of a Farmer Winery, Farmer’s Market License to Rachel Humphries, Crave 

Mead, LLC, by Pellegri. SECOND by Dellorco. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that this application is 

for Ms. Rachel Humphries to have samples at the Franklin Farmers’ Market. He stated that this 

application has been reviewed and approved by all departments. ►Councilor Chandler asked if the 

applicant was serving at last Friday’s Farmers’ Market. ►Ms. Humphries (via Zoom) stated that they 

skipped last Friday. She will be at the Farmers’ Market on July 15, 2022. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: 

Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; 

Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: ►Presentation/Discussion: North Grove Priority Development 

Area Redevelopment Concept-Urban Land Institute Technical Assistance Panel & MassDevelopment. 

►Mr. Hellen stated that this presentation is about the Nu-Style property on Grove Street. He thanked 

Director of Planning and Community Development Bryan Taberner and Town Planner Amy Love for 

working on this and looking for a solution for this property. He stated that the Town does not have the 

needed technical staff to implement a project of this nature by itself. DPCD reached out to 

MassDevelopment for assistance in the form of funding and/or technical assistance. As a result, the Town 

is being provided with technical assistance through an Urban Land Institute Technical Assistance Panel 

(TAP). He thanked the presenters for financing this study. He noted that the team has been here all day; 

they have talked with all adjacent property owners, interviewed some of the businesses, and done site 

visits. He stated that the presenters would be providing a PowerPoint presentation of their ideas based on 

their full-day analysis. He noted that there is a proposal in the governor’s budget for assessment and 

remediation at the Nu-Style property in Franklin for $284,400. He thanked the presenters, the governor, 

and the administration for recognizing this complicated project. ►Mr. Ed O’Rourke of Azzur Group 

stated that he is from the Urban Land Institute. The Institute is a non-profit organization with 46,000 

members internationally comprised of all manner of experts in the real estate industries. He stated that 

what we do in the Boston area is that we come together to look at problems that towns and municipalities 

have and we assemble the appropriate experts to look at it. Ms. Mary Ellen DeFrias, Vice President for 

Community Investment at Mass Development, stated that they have been working on this project with the 

Town for close to five years. She stated that brownfields are a problem and towns do not have money to 

fix them. Mr. Joe Marini of Gibson Sotheby’s International Realty stated that he does project 

development. Mr. John Kucich stated that he is with Bohler Engineering. Mr. James Heffernan of Rich 

May Law stated that he is a co-chair. ►Mr. Heffernan narrated the slideshow presentation. He stated that 

the panel assignment addressed three questions: Is the Town’s North Grove revitalization and access 

roadway project feasible given existing constraints or are there better options, can the Town create a 



3 

 

public/private development partnership to implement the proposed project, and what specific process 

should the Town take to implement the chosen revitalization project. He showed a map of the study area 

and reviewed the process to assess redevelopment which included the briefing meeting, the site visit, and 

stakeholder interviews. He stated that they will be putting together a more formal written draft of their 

ideas and this presentation which will be issued in 10 to 12 weeks. ►Ms. DeFrias reviewed the 

stakeholder input which included that the Nu-Style property needs to be cleaned, there are challenges due 

to layout, topography, and that it is no longer a recognized road, all stakeholders have to get on the same 

page, and lack of appetite for discussion around a roadway. She reviewed the existing condition of North 

Grove PDA which include that a number of the current parcels have environmental contamination; she 

reviewed the chemicals in the soil. She stated that they have not looked under the building. She reviewed 

the assets and opportunities which include that the Town already owns a parcel and has already 

commenced some remediation, accessibility from Rt. 140 and I-495, commuter rail station nearby, Forge 

Parkway, and helpful existing zoning bylaw. She reviewed the challenges which include that the site is 

still contaminated, multiple parcel owners, landlocked sites, lack of street frontage, location of Mine 

Brook, topography, and existing building conditions. ►Mr. Heffernan reviewed and discussed the 

recommendations which include that while the Access Roadway project is an attractive solution, there are 

better options to remediate and develop the Town’s Nu-Style property and stimulate private investment in 

the site. He discussed one option is the Town becoming an active partner and facilitating a land swap 

allowing the Town-owned Lot 22 and 15 Grove Street to be joined and remediated, leading to a larger 

developable parcel with the additional benefit of increased curb appeal, and additionally, extending the 

biotechnology overlay district to provide economic incentive and increase the likelihood of private 

investment. To address the question of can the Town create a public/private development partnership to 

implement the proposed project, he reviewed that the panel recommends that the community works with 

the EPA, Mass DEP, and Mass Development to create a comprehensive remediation plan which will lead 

to future private investment in the site. He stated that the third questions regarding the specific process 

that should be implemented was a way to put it all together. He discussed the possible property 

acquisitions with 25 Grove Street and the remediation effort of the combined site. He stated that this is in 

a business district and suggested the Town add the biotechnology use overlay district. ►Ms. DeFrias 

stated that if the two lots were combined and the Town owned them both, they would be eligible for the 

grant funds. Mr. Marini discussed marketing and reviewed that once remediation is completed, the new 

parcel will benefit from additional hardscaping and landscaping. The final phase is to contract with a local 

commercial broker to divest from the property. ►Town Council members asked questions and made 

comments. In response, Mr. Hellen stated that the grant for this process was paid for by Mass 

Development and the Town has done several hundred thousand dollars’ worth of remediation in the past. 

He stated that the Town has applied for many EPA grants in the past. It stated that it would take a 

public/private effort to reach the full potential of the parcel. Ms. DeFrias responded to Councilor 

Frongillo’s request for assurance that there is a path for getting more money out of this than the Town is 

putting in. She discussed that the governor’s bond bill was a very clear indication that he is taking it 

seriously for the funding for the cleanup. However, there may be other things the Town has to do. Mr. 

Hellen stated that the appropriation in the governor’s bill will help with the next big step. After that, we 

can think of the land swap concept. If that were to happen and it were to be successful, the return on 

investment to the Town is good as we could sell the two parcels together and it would be a clean site. He 

stated that he would like to believe that in a real estate market like Massachusetts, it would be marketable. 

Mr. O’Rouke discussed the next steps if the land swap could not be done. Ms. DeFrias stated that they 

think they have a handle on the contamination, but they do not know about how extensive some of the hot 

spots are. She does not think that they are looking at a complete unknown. Mr. O’Rouke discussed the 

process of removing the contaminated soil. Ms. DeFrias stated that the metals have been removed. She 

stated that even with the land swap, she does not think this would rise to the cost of a Superfund site. She 

stated that the Town could check with their LSP, but her inclination is that as the EPA was here and did 

the cleanup, if they did not put the requirement to block off the site, then it is fine. They would have shut 

it down if they thought otherwise. She does not see anything indicated in the report that says there is 



4 

 

concern about where the karate school is located; she would check with the LSP. Mr. Hellen stated that 

the Town has already done $0.5 million in remediation of taking the materials out; $200,000 was from the 

EPA. He stated that 300 Fisher Street has a higher designation than what we are talking about here. He 

stated that area was fenced off and no one was allowed down there. He stated that he assures everyone 

that if this area being discussed needed to be fenced off and cautioned, we would have already been told 

to do it. Ms. DeFrias noted that these were one parcel at one point. Mr. Hellen asked what was the panel’s 

opinion on the North Grove PDA proposed roadway concept. Mr. O’Rouke and Mr. Heffernan discussed 

their opinions; the roadway would be an uphill battle, but the idea should not be deleted. ►Chair Mercer 

thanked the presenters for their time and effort.  

 

LEGISLATION FOR ACTION:    

Note: Two-Thirds Vote requires six votes; Majority Vote requires majority of members present and 

voting.  

 

a. Resolution 22-32: Salary Schedule: Full-Time Elected Official - Town Clerk (Motion to Approve 

Resolution 22-32 - Majority Roll Call Vote). ►Councilor Pellegri read the resolution. ►MOTION 

to Approve Resolution 22-32: Salary Schedule: Full-Time Elected Official - Town Clerk, to $90,475 

beginning July 1, 2022, by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. ►MOTION to Amend Resolution 

22-32: Salary Schedule: Full-Time Elected Official - Town Clerk, to $96,000 beginning July 1, 2022, 

by Chandler. SECOND by Dellorco. No discussion (on the amendment). ►ROLL CALL VOTE 

(on the amendment): Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-ABSTAIN; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-

YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-8, 

No-0, Abstain-1. ►MOTION to Approve Resolution 22-32 as Amended by Dellorco. SECOND by 

Hamblen. Discussion: ►Councilor Frongillo questioned if they are confident that the compensation 

classification study will show that the Town Clerk is underpaid. ►Mr. Hellen stated that there is a 

100 percent chance that she is underpaid. ►Councilor Cormier-Leger requested clarification of 

“market adjustment to make the salary more commensurate with comparable communities of the 

same job title” in Mr. Hellen’s memo to the Town Council dated June 3, 2022. ►Mr. Hellen stated 

that there are numerous ways to do comparable communities. He stated that the Town’s consultant 

has a fairly flawless methodology. The salary study is going to be for all non-union employees. He 

stated that he hesitates to provide the comparable communities right now because he does not want to 

jump ahead of the consultant in the study. He stated that suffice it to say that it is not just area 

communities like Medway as they are smaller communities; it looks at applicable metrics. He stated 

that it will be pointed out in the study that this position is appointed in some communities and elected 

in some communities. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-ABSTAIN; 

Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; 

Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-8, No-0, Abstain-1. 

 

b. Resolution 22-30: FY22 Capital Plan Round 2 (Motion to Approve Resolution 22-30 - Majority 

Vote). ►Councilor Pellegri read the resolution. ►MOTION to Approve Resolution 22-30: FY22 

Capital Plan Round 2 by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that 

Councilor Pellegri reviewed the resolution well. ►DPW Director Brutus Cantoreggi stated that the 

SNETT improvement work is going out to bid now; he stated that he anticipates getting it done by the 

end of the fiscal year. He reviewed that the work starts on Grove Street and goes through Bellingham. 

He noted that they are going to expand the parking lot there; it will be a benefit to the community. He 

reviewed his request for another $200,000 for snow and ice for last year. He stated that the price of 

salt went up and they used more salt than anticipated. ►Mr. Hellen stated that the total for snow and 

ice is pretty average. ►Mr. Cantoreggi stated that he is cautious about the amount of salt they use. 

►Chair Mercer asked where are the desktops and docking stations. ►Mr. Hellen stated it is a mix of 

Municipal and School. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-



5 

 

YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. 

►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

c. Resolution 22-34: Gift Acceptance - Senior Center ($100), Fire Department ($50) (Motion to 

Approve Resolution 22-34 - Majority Vote). ►Councilor Pellegri read the resolution. ►MOTION 

to Approve Resolution 22-34: Gift Acceptance - Senior Center ($100), Fire Department ($50) by 

Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that the names of the donors are 

Paul and Christine Molla for the Senior Center donation and Mary and Donald Ranieri for the Fire 

Department donation. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-

YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. 

►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

d. Resolution 22-35: Cable Funds in Support of PEG Service and Programming per MGL Ch. 44, 

§53F3/4 (Motion to Approve Resolution 22-35 - Majority Vote). ►MOTION to Waive the reading 

by Cormier-Leger. SECOND by Dellorco. No discussion. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-

YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-

YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. ►MOTION to Approve 

Resolution 22-35: Cable Funds in Support of PEG Service and Programming per MGL Ch. 44, 

§53F3/4 by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. No discussion. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-

YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-

YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

e. Resolution 22-39: Authorizing the Additional Borrowing of Money to Pay Additional Costs of the 

Beaver Street Interceptor Replacement Project (Motion to Approve Resolution 22-39 – Two-Thirds 

Majority Vote). ►MOTION to Waive the reading by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. No 

discussion. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; 

Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. 

►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. ►MOTION to Approve Resolution 22-39: Authorizing the 

Additional Borrowing of Money to Pay Additional Costs of the Beaver Street Interceptor 

Replacement Project by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that they 

are in the final stages of applying for and getting authorization for the loan. He stated that we know 

that we have to get this started. He stated that $25 million was authorized earlier this year for the 

Beaver Street Interceptor project; however, the costs have gone up. He stated that the cost of inaction 

and the potential catastrophe that looms are more than the additional $8 million requested. He noted 

that just because it is authorized, it does not mean it will be spent. ►DPW Director Brutus 

Cantoreggi introduced Water Superintendent Doug Martin and Assistant Water Superintendent Jacob 

Stanley. Mr. Cantoreggi narrated a slideshow presentation highlighting where the cost drivers are. He 

stated that this piece of sewer infrastructure is 108 years old and located in a terrible place near a river 

and train tracks. He stated that a firm was hired in October to determine how much this will cost. He 

reviewed the proposed new Beaver Street pump station and force main; it will go up Rt. 140. He 

discussed the new pipe and sewers needed and the locations. He stated that they anticipate bidding in 

August of this year. He stated that cost for construction is approximately $28 million, construction 

and post construction engineering is approximal $3 million, and police details are approximately $1 

million for a total of approximately $33 million. It is a 30-month construction duration. ►Mr. Martin 

discussed potential loan forgiveness of a few million off the loan. ►Mr. Cantoreggi discussed cost 

increase factors including fuel, supply chain issues, availability of materials, and project factors. 

►Town Council members asked questions and made comments. ►In response, Mr. Martin stated 

that the funding loan is pretty standard at two percent. ►Mr. Hellen stated that the AAA bond rating 

has no effect. He discussed the Housing Choice Program which should make it 1.5 percent. He stated 

that a stabilization fund would not be considered due to the state program. ►Mr. Cantoreggi 

reiterated the completion timeline is 30 months with a start this fall. He stated that there would be no 



6 

 

benefit to keeping the old system going once the new one is completed; they have already extended 

the life of the old system as long as possible, and the costs would be too prohibitive. He stated that the 

old system will be filled in which is included in the cost. He discussed the inconvenience and impact 

to businesses and traffic for the 30 months of construction. He stated that there will be a lot of public 

outreach needed. ►Councilor Chandler explained that this project has to be done. Councilor Dellorco 

explained that the residents in Plymouth have had large tax increases due to that town’s sewer 

problems. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; 

Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. 

►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: ►None.  

 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS:   
a. Capital Budget Subcommittee. ►None.  

b. Budget Subcommittee. ►None.   

c. Economic Development Subcommittee. ►Councilor Hamblen stated that they met before tonight’s 

Town Council meeting. She stated that they will be meeting on August 10, 2022, at 6 PM when they 

have more time to discuss the final recommendations for the Franklin for All project.  

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: ►Councilor Frongillo suggested an agenda item for the Town to 

recognize June as Pride month. ►Councilor Cormier-Leger asked for co-chair Kaye Kelly to attend a 

meeting to talk about the Franklin Cultural Council. ►Councilor Pellegri asked to invite the Community 

Preservation Committee to let the Town Council know what they have done and how the money has been 

expended.  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: ►Councilor Cormier-Leger thanked the Veterans’ Administration and 

everyone who put the beautiful Memorial Day celebrations together. He wished everyone a happy Pride 

month. ►Councilor Chandler noted the great Memorial Day. He provided his new phone number to be 

added to the website. ►Councilor Sheridan thanked all those involved in the Memorial Day events. He 

noted the upcoming Strawberry Festival and event for Ukraine. ►Councilor Frongillo noted that there are 

many events in Franklin in June. He noted Pride Day and Juneteenth open mike events. ►Councilor 

Hamblen thanked everyone involved in the Memorial Day events and all those involved in last Friday’s 

graduation. She noted the field hockey field opening. She noted Dean College parking is open to the 

public for the Strawberry Stroll. She stated that the Ladybug Trail will have its official opening. 

►Councilors Pellegri, Jones, and Dellorco noted agreement with the other Town Council members’ 

statements. ►Councilor Dellorco stated that on August 1, 2022, the SAFE Coalition will be moving from 

Norfolk to the Mosely Mills location in Franklin. ►Chair Mercer agreed that there will be a lot of 

activities going on in June in Franklin.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: ►Exemption #6: To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 

property, because an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the 

public body and the chair so declares. i. Schmidt’s Farm, Prospect Street.  

 

►Chair Mercer stated there is a need for an executive session. He stated that he needs to recuse himself 

from the executive session; he will turn the gavel over to Vice Chair Dellorco. ►Vice Chair Dellorco 

stated that there is a need for an executive session to consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of 

real property, because an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the 

public body and the chair so declares, Schmidt’s Farm, Prospect Street. ►MOTION to Enter executive 

session for the purpose of Exemption #6: To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 

property, because an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the public 

body and the chair so declares, for Schmidt’s Farm, Prospect Street, and the open meeting will not 



7 

 

reconvene at the conclusion of the executive session by Pellegri. SECOND by Hamblen. No Discussion. 

►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; Frongillo-YES; 

Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: Yes-8, No-0, Recused-1. 

 

Open Session ended at 9:27 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

___________________ 

Judith Lizardi 

Recording Secretary 

 

 



1 

 

FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

June 22, 2022 

 

A meeting of the Town Council was held on Wednesday, June 22, 2022, at the Municipal Building, 2nd 

Floor, Council Chambers, 355 East Central Street, Franklin, MA. Councilors present: Brian Chandler, 

Theodore Cormier-Leger, Robert Dellorco, Cobi Frongillo, Melanie Hamblen, Glenn Jones, Thomas 

Mercer, Deborah Pellegri, Patrick Sheridan. Councilors absent: None. Administrative personnel in 

attendance: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator; Mark Cerel, Town Attorney; Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to 

the Town Administrator.  

 

CALL TO ORDER: ►Chair Mercer called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Chair Mercer called for a 

moment of silence. All recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: ►Chair Mercer reviewed the following as posted on the agenda. A Note to 

Residents: All citizens are welcome to attend public board and committee meetings in person. Meetings 

are live-streamed by Franklin TV and shown on Comcast Channel 11 and Verizon Channel 29. In an 

effort to maximize citizen engagement opportunities, citizens will be able to continue to participate 

remotely via phone or Zoom. He announced that this meeting is being recorded by Franklin TV and 

shown on Comcast channel 11 and Verizon Channel 29. This meeting may be recorded by others.  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS: ►Mr. Archit Bhatia, 25 MaryJane Road, stated that he would like to give a 

presentation on the greenhouse gas inventory for Franklin. He stated that he got into the project through 

the Franklin High School Green Team. He stated that they took an inventory of all the emissions of the 

town. He narrated a slideshow presentation. He stated that they used the Metropolitan Area Planning 

Council (MAPC) greenhouse gas inventory tool which helped them get information on activities in town 

that raised emissions. He provided an overview of the findings. He stated that per year, Franklin releases 

approximately 350,000 tons of CO2. He described stationary energy. He stated that in total, Franklin emits 

10.8 tons of CO2 per resident, per year. He reviewed information regarding heading in the direction of net 

zero. He stated that he would be excited if the town administration continued to work with them on this.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: ►May 25, 2022 and May 26, 2022. ►MOTION to Approve the May 

25, 2022 meeting minutes by Dellorco. SECOND by Jones. No discussion. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, 

Absent-0. ►MOTION to Approve the May 26, 2022 meeting minutes by Dellorco. SECOND by 

Jones. No discussion. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

PROCLAMATIONS/RECOGNITIONS: ►Proclamation and Performance: Electric Youth. ►Chair 

Mercer stated that this is a proclamation recognizing Electric Youth. He read aloud the proclamation 

honoring Electric Youth on the occasion of their 2022 European tour. ►Ms. Raye Lynn Mercer thanked 

the Town Council. ►Electric Youth members introduced themselves and gave a singing presentation.  

 

►Proclamation: LGBTQIA+ Pride Month Recognition. ►Chair Mercer stated that this is a 

proclamation recognizing LGBTQIA+ Pride Month. ►Councilor Cormier-Leger read aloud the 

proclamation honoring LGBTQIA+ Pride Month recognizing June as LGBTQIA+ Pride Month.  

 

Chair Mercer declared a two-minute recess.  

 

 

 

 



2 

 

APPOINTMENTS: ►Richard Salve - New Hire, Firefighter/Paramedic - Fire Department. ►Fire 

Chief James McLaughlin introduced new member of the Fire Department, Richard Salve. He reviewed 

Mr. Salve’s education, background, and career. ►Town Clerk Nancy Danello performed the swearing in. 

►Mr. Salve’s girlfriend pinned the badge.   

 

►Timothy Sweeney - New Hire, Firefighter/Paramedic - Fire Department. ►Fire Chief James 

McLaughlin introduced new member of the Fire Department, Timothy Sweeney. He reviewed Mr. 

Sweeney’s education, background, and career. ►Town Clerk Nancy Danello performed the swearing in. 

►Mr. Sweeney’s wife pinned the badge.   

 

►Annual Reappointments of Boards and Committees. ►Councilor Jones read the Appointed 

Committee Members June 2022 document. ►MOTION to Ratify the Annual appointments to the 

following boards and commissions (as listed on the Appointed Committee Members June 2022 

document) by Jones. SECOND by Dellorco. Discussion: ►Ms. Pellegri asked about the Historical 

Commission’s appointment regarding Alan Earls as a full member as his application indicates serving as 

an associate. ►Mr. Hellen noted an email correspondence indicating that Mr. Earls wanted to be a full 

member. ►Councilor Frongillo asked about the application process and the reappointment process. 

►Mr. Hellen stated that when there is a vacancy, they put out an announcement, and traditionally a lot of 

applications are received. In approximately July, they will put out a posting with all the currently 

available seats. Normally, they do not need to do that every year; they keep the applications on file. He 

explained the reappointment process. He stated that when a term of appointment is up, the person is asked 

if they would like reappointment. Usually, if there are no concerns, the member can be reappointed. He 

stated that it is good to have some consistency on the boards. He noted that these are volunteers. 

►Councilor Frongillo asked that the reappointment process be looked into. He stated that there are a 

whole bunch of benefits of getting new people in. ►Mr. Hellen explained the staggered appointment 

terms on most non-elected boards. He stated that many of the bigger committees have a very healthy 

cycle of new faces. He provided an example of the Finance Committee membership. ►Councilor Jones 

stated that there were times that the town was struggling to get volunteers on boards. He said that he is 

excited to see people stepping up to get involved in volunteer opportunities. He stated that there are 

countless hours behind the scenes that are needed to do the committee work. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, 

Absent-0.  

 

►Tri-County School Committee Appointment - Jennifer D’Angelo. ►Councilor Jones read the 

appointment. ►MOTION to Ratify the appointment by the Town Administrator of Jennifer D’Angelo to 

serve as a member of the Tri-County Regional Vocational School Committee, with a term to expire on 

June 30, 2025, by Jones. SECOND by Dellorco. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen and Councilor Pellegri stated 

this is a great candidate. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0.  

 

HEARINGS: None.  

 

LICENSE TRANSACTIONS: None.  

 

PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: None.  

 

LEGISLATION FOR ACTION:    

Note: Two-Thirds Vote requires six votes; Majority Vote requires majority of members present and 

voting.  

 

a. Resolution 22-36: FY23 CPA Budget & Reservations (Motion to Approve Resolution 22-36 - 

Majority Vote). ►Councilor Jones read the resolution. ►MOTION to Approve Resolution 22-36: 

FY23 CPA Budget & Reservations by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen 



3 

 

explained that the vote before the Town Council is the formal legal recommendation from the 

Community Preservation Committee (CPC). This budget sets out 5 percent administrative costs, 10 

percent for each of the three categories, and 65 percent remaining in the budgeted reserve. He 

reviewed that this states the legal framework for which we have to spend the money by those amounts 

in those categories. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

b. Resolution 22-37: FY23 CPC Appropriation of Capital Funds (Motion to Approve Resolution 

22-37 - Majority Vote). ►Councilor Jones read the resolution. ►MOTION to Approve Resolution 

22-37: FY23 CPC Appropriation of Capital Funds by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: 

►Mr. Hellen stated that there are some great projects; this is huge. This is what everyone voted for. 

He stated that he is excited to bring these forward and endorsed by the CPC. He stated that these are a 

lot of projects that people had in mind; he is grateful to get these projects moving. He noted that the 

Red Brick Schoolhouse has been out to bid; bids will be due soon. He stated that he hopes the work 

will start in July. ►CPC Chairman Christopher Feeley was in attendance at the meeting. ►Councilor 

Jones confirmed the Red Brick Schoolhouse is still being used by the robotics club. ►Councilor 

Hamblen stated that she is excited that these projects are going to get done. She asked why each item 

has to be a separate appropriation. ►Mr. Hellen stated it is an accounting process. ►In response to 

questions, Mr. Feeley stated that these projects were all voted on unanimously by the committee. He 

noted that other projects were discussed; there is going to be a rolling application process. ►Mr. 

Hellen explained the Franklin Ridge housing project and where some of the funding has come from 

for this project; this amount matches the required 10 percent contributions. He stated that the state and 

federal have to help out on this project. ►Councilor Chandler stated that the Red Brick Schoolhouse 

is dilapidate, and he appreciates the CPC taking on this project list. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-

0. 

 

c. Resolution 22-38: CPC Appropriation of Funds - Debt Service Maple Hill Land (Motion to 

Approve Resolution 22-38 - Majority Vote). ►Councilor Jones read the resolution. ►MOTION to 

Approve Resolution 22-38: CPC Appropriation of Funds - Debt Service Maple Hill Land by 

Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that this is the first payment on 

the Maple Hill property. In the future, they will not have to do this annually; he wanted people to 

know the cost. He noted that from the borrowing of about a month ago, they got a 3.38 interest rate. 

►Councilor Hamblen stated that due to the CPC, we can save open space, and it is really not that 

much money. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

d. Resolution 22-40: Appropriation Transfers FY22 (Motion to Approve Resolution 22-40 - 

Majority Vote). ►MOTION to Approve Resolution 22-40: Appropriation Transfers FY22 by 

Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that on an annual basis there are 

a few transfers that need to be done between departments. He stated that the real message is that out 

of a $138 million budget, all of our departments did a tremendous job staying within budget and 

working within their budget to where we only have to transfer less than $50,000. In response to 

questions, he stated that regarding the $10,000 for Fire Expenses, he believes there was a cost 

increase in one of the contracts. He explained the Town Administrator Expenses for $7,800. He stated 

that any unspent money during the fiscal year creates free cash money. He stated that the $7,800 is 

probably miscellaneous from all the accounts. ►Fire Chief James McLaughlin explained Fire 

Expenses for $10,000. He stated that they were a little short. He stated that they went a little over with 

training. He reviewed the EMS training process. ►VOTE: Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

e. Resolution 22-41: Authority for Town Administrator to File Clean Water State Revolving Fund 

Application (Motion to Approve Resolution 22-41 - Majority Vote). ►MOTION to Approve 

Resolution 22-41: Authority for Town Administrator to File Clean Water State Revolving Fund 



4 

 

Application by Dellorco. SECOND by Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen reviewed that the SRF 

loan application for this project requires a last resolution authorizing the Town Administrator to file 

applications, execute agreements, provide relevant information for grant and/or loan assistance, and 

otherwise to act as the authorized representative of the Town in connection with this application. 

►DPW Director Brutus Cantoreggi, in response to questions, stated that through the whole project, 

they have an outside consultant who will be there and who will bring in specialists as well. It is a 

checks and balances kind of thing, similar to the plant they did on Grove Street. ►VOTE: Yes-9, 

No-0, Absent-0. 

 

f. Resolution 22-42: Gift Acceptance - Veterans’ Services Dept. ($1,960) (Motion to Approve 

Resolution 22-42 - Majority Vote). ►Councilor Jones read the resolution. ►MOTION to Approve 

Resolution 22-42: Gift Acceptance - Veterans’ Services Dept. ($1,960) by Dellorco. SECOND by 

Hamblen. Discussion: ►Mr. Hellen stated that Mr. Joseph Halligan is probably one of the more 

generous people in town. He thanked him for his gift. He noted that next year, this will be a Town-

sponsored event. He discussed reasons as to why the Memorial Day Parade was not a Town-

sponsored event this year. He noted that in previous years it was the Rotary Club that spearheaded the 

parade. ►Councilor Pellegri questioned why the police detail payment was not taken out of the Town 

budget and why an individual had to pay for it. She stated that she does not agree with having to have 

an individual pay for a police detail. She stated that we should have found the money to pay for it; we 

find the money for other things. ►Mr. Hellen explained that historically the Rotary Club has funded 

the Memorial Day Parade including the police detail. ►Councilor Jones thanked Mr. Halligan for his 

wonderful donation. He thanked former Town Council member Matt Kelly for spearheading the 

Memorial Day Parade with the Rotary Club. ►VOTE: Yes-8, No-1, Absent-0. (Councilor Pellegri 

voted No.) 

 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: ►None.  

 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS:   
a. Capital Budget Subcommittee. ►None.  

b. Budget Subcommittee. ►None.   

c. Economic Development Subcommittee. ►None.  

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: ►Councilor Sheridan asked to talk about the flag and the historical 

districts. ►Mr. Hellen stated the historical districts discussion would be around November. ►Councilor 

Frongillo asked to follow up with the student who presented the greenhouse gases inventory and get it on 

an agenda. He asked to talk about parking. ►Councilor Hamblen stated that she agreed with Councilor 

Sheridan about a discussion on the flag and the emissions discussion. ►Councilor Cormier-Leger 

mentioned the state flag presentation; he supported hearing more from the group putting it together. He 

asked to hear more about the greenhouse gases emissions. ►Councilor Pellegri asked if the plastic bags 

were going to be brought forward again; we put it on hold. ►Mr. Hellen stated that it has been in the 

local code for four years. It was passed. He noted there was a brief hold put on it during Covid. He 

confirmed businesses should not be using plastic bags. ►Councilor Pellegri stated something should be 

put out on Facebook or wherever to let people know they are not supposed to be using them because there 

are stores using them. ►Councilor Jones stated that he would like the Davis Thayer School to be put on a 

future agenda. ►Councilor Dellorco asked for the person who did the greenhouse gases emissions 

presentation to be brought back.  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: ►Councilor Cormier-Leger thanked the Town for the proclamation 

recognizing Pride month. ►Councilor Chandler thanked all the people who volunteer and all the people 

who were reappointed to the boards and committees. He thanked Mr. Halligan for his payment of the 

police detail for the Memorial Day Parade. He said Electric Youth were awesome. ►Councilor Pellegri 



5 

 

gave condolences to the family of Stacey Bower. ►Councilor Sheridan thanked the Franklin Clergy 

Council for organizing the event in Support for Ukraine held on Town Common. ►Councilor Frongillo 

noted the Franklin Art Association is opening their art gallery; the grand opening is tomorrow from 6 PM 

to 8 PM. He noted Pride Day is Sunday at the Town Common from 12 PM to 4 PM. ►Councilor 

Hamblen said ditto to what everyone said. She stated that she was adding to not forget about the Farmers’ 

Market. She stated that this year the SNAP program is in effect; Dean Bank has matched the first $10 you 

spend. She wished everyone a wonderful and safe Fourth of July. ►Councilor Jones asked for the 

feasibility of getting lights at the crosswalk at Dean College. ►Mr. Hellen stated that he got a response 

from DPW Director Brutus Cantoreggi. He stated that Mr. Cantoreggi and the Town Engineer have taken 

note of it; they are going out to see how close some of the ornamental lights are. They plan to talk to the 

new incoming Dean College president about this. ►Mr. Cantoreggi stated that ornamental lights are easy 

to change; so, if we need to upgrade it, it can be easy to change. He noted the trees have grown as well. 

►Councilor Jones apologized for his absence at the last meeting due to Covid. ►Councilor Dellorco 

gave a shout-out to the Franklin High Baseball Team. He gave condolences to the family of Stacey 

Bower. ►Chair Mercer gave a shout-out to the Franklin High Baseball Team. He congratulated the 

Franklin Boys Lacrosse Team and the Franklin Girls Lacrosse Team.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: ►Collective Bargaining - Exemption #3: Collective Bargaining (all Town 

unions) - To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining if an open meeting may have a 

detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the public body and the chair so declares. ►Chair 

Mercer stated there is a need for an executive session for Collective Bargaining, Exemption #3, Collective 

Bargaining (all Town unions) to discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining if an open meeting 

may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the public body and the chair so declares, and 

we will not return to open session. ►MOTION to Enter executive session for the purpose of Collective 

Bargaining - Exemption #3: Collective Bargaining (all Town unions) - To discuss strategy with respect to 

collective bargaining if an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the 

public body and the chair so declares, and to not return to open session, by Jones. SECOND by Dellorco. 

No Discussion. ►ROLL CALL VOTE: Chandler-YES; Cormier-Leger-YES; Dellorco-YES; 

Frongillo-YES; Hamblen-YES; Jones-YES; Mercer-YES; Pellegri-YES; Sheridan-YES. ►VOTE: 

Yes-9, No-0, Absent-0. 

 

Open Session ended at 8:44 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

__________________ 

Judith Lizardi 

Recording Secretary 

 

 



Franklin, MA 
Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Inventory



The Tool: Metropolitan Area Planning Council



350,804
tons of 
CO2e



What is Stationary Energy?

❖ Residential 
Buildings

❖ Commercial and 
Industrial Buildings

❖ Construction



In total, 
Franklin emits 
10.8 tons of 
CO2 per 
resident, per 
year.





Heading in the Direction of Net Zero

❖ Green the grid with 
renewables

❖ Produce more green energy 
locally

❖ Make homes and buildings 
energy efficient

❖ Electrify heating and cooking 
equipment

❖ Encourage walking, biking, 
and public transport

❖ Electrify existing transport



Grade 1: hazardous and must be repaired 
immediately. This includes leaks in or near a 
contained space, such as a building or manhole, 
where the gas could build up enough to 
potentially explode.
Grade 2: non-hazardous, but could become 
hazardous in the near future
Grade 3: non-hazardous and are expected to 
remain non-hazardous

*SEI (significant environmental impact): grade 3 
leaks larger than 2000 sqft . These largest 7% of 
leaks contribute roughly 50% of all leak 
emissions.







July 15, 2022

To: Town Council

From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

RE: Appointment - 2022 Election Workers, Police Officers, Voting Schedule

Every election year we are required to have the list of Election Workers ratified by the Town Council. We are

recommending the appointment of the attached list of names for the upcoming 2022 elections. These names were

submitted to the Town Administrator by the Town Clerk and are listed in Exhibit 1 of the packet.

Later in tonight’s agenda, we are also asking the Council to approve resolution 22-55 for the following issues

1) Number of Police Officers that will be present at the polling location (Franklin High School):

● State Primary 9/6/2022: 2 Officers (1 inside and 1 outside)

● State Election 11/8/2022: 4 Officers (2 inside and 2 outside)

2) State Primary Voting Schedule (see flier attached)

● In Person Early Voting

● Election day

Chapter 92 of Legislative Acts of 2022 was passed this year with a series of election reforms. These actions are required
under the new statute to designate the quantity and location of police officers working at a polling place, as well as
approval of early voting as shown on Exhibit 1 of Resolution 22-55.

Please let us know if you have any questions.



APPOINTMENTS

Election Workers

The Town Clerk has submitted the list of names attached hereto as “Exhibit 1” to be appointed as Election
Workers for the upcoming 2022 elections.

MOTION to appoint the persons whose names appear in “Exhibit 1” as Election Workers as requested by
the Town Clerk.

DATED:  _________________, 2022

VOTED:

UNANIMOUS: _________

A True Record Attest: YES: ______  NO: _______

ABSTAIN: _____________

ABSENT: ______________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk ________________________

Glenn Jones, Clerk
Franklin Town Council



jmccann
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 1

jmccann
Typewritten Text









July 15, 2022

To: Town Council

From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

RE: Disposition of Town-owned land containing South Franklin Meeting House

On the agenda for the July 20th Town Council Meeting is a discussion regarding the disposition of the Town-owned land

that contains the South Franklin Meeting House (Old South Church).  The decision this evening is to accept the

recommendation from the EDC and move forward with housing  or not and discuss an RFP of another fashion.

As you know an Expression of Interest went out for a two month period to see if there are any interested parties willing

to take on the preservation project. The Town received two formal, non-binding written proposals.

At the May EDC meeting, the committee weighed both proposals, in addition to other qualitative information from the

two open houses, and had a detailed discussion.  They voted 3-1 (Yes: Hamblen, Jones and Frongillo; No: Sheridan)  to

recommend to the full Town Council to instruct the staff to put an RFP out for parties to bid on housing projects only.

The Expressions of Interest we received are attached, as is the Solicitation Document that was posted on the Town

website.

Please see below for links to related materials:

● 2020 Old South Church Existing Conditions report
● 2015 Old South Church Existing Conditions report
● Old South Church document website

Please let us know if you have any questions.

https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/expressions_of_interest.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/news/2022_request_for_eoi_-_762_washington_street_-_03072022.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/20-0930_sfmh_existing_conditions_report_issued_2.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/old_south_meeting_house_on_washington_street_1.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/administrator/pages/special-projects






Providence Baptist Church 
“Now to Him who is able to do far more abundantly than all that we ask or think, according 

to the power at work within us, to Him be glory in the church and in Christ Jesus throughout 
all generations, forever and ever. Amen.” Ephesians 3:20-21 (ESV)   

Church Office: 80 Boardman Street, Norfolk, MA 02056 

www.ProvidenceBaptistChurchMA.org - Office ph: 508-528-5750 

Pastor Mark Lukens 

 

 

March 16th, 2022 

 

 

Mr. Jamie Hellen 

Town Administrator 

Town of Franklin 

355 East Central Street 

Franklin, MA 02038 

 

 

Dear Mr. Hellen, 

 

 

 We are writing to express interest in the property known as the South 

Franklin Congregational Meeting House located at 762 Washington Street, 

Franklin, MA. On Monday, March 14th, we attended the open house for a 

visual review of the property and building. Upon entering, we were pleased to 

observe the historic faith of the Congregational Church past displayed in 

the signs of “Reverence My Sanctuary, I am the Lord” and “Worship the Lord 

in the Beauty of Holiness”. In keeping with those who built this church so 

many years ago, our great desire is to see this open as a church once again! 

 

 As a church, we propose that great strides could be made to the 

property with the investment of many hours of volunteer labor and a 

considerable amount of paint. For the interior of the building, we propose 

that cosmetic repairs only be made to the visible surfaces. Additional 

investigation is required to determine structural needs for the posts that 

have been affected by beetles in the crawl space, these will need to be 

replaced with the appropriate permitting process. As the building use group 

will be maintained as a church for religious worship, handicap requirements 

will not apply allowing the bathrooms to be restored for use until funds 

are available for their future upgrade. 

 

For the exterior of the building, we propose that the existing stone 

parking area be expanded approximately one (1) car width on the east side of 

the building. This would have minimal impact on the existing property while 

allowing for angled parking for congregational use. We also propose that 

the adjacent parcel #322-050-001-000 located between the church building 

and Colt Road be included with the sale of the church property. This will 

allow for uniform maintenance of the properties and provide advantages to 

both the Town of Franklin in the relief of maintenance requirements, as well 



as, to the Church in connecting the corner real estate to the area maintained 

and functioning as Church property. 

 

As we consider the historical significance of this building, re-opening 

this as a church seems like the clear and only way to maintain the intentions 

of our forebearers and to not go against their desires and beliefs as the two 

signs in the back of the sanctuary declare so beautifully. We look forward 

to continuing to work with the Town of Franklin on this property. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Eric Moores (Member)  

 
In unity with: 
Pastor Mark Lukens 

And  
David Iskandar (Member) 

 

 



1 

 

Request for Expressions of Interest 

For Purchase/Lease 
South Franklin Congregational Meeting House 

762 Washington Street, Franklin, MA 
 

The Town of Franklin is pleased to present this Request for Expressions of Interest (REI) for the 

purchase or lease and redevelopment of 762 Washington Street. The Town-owned property 

consists of one (1) parcel totaling 28,550 SF (0.655 acres) with a wood framed building with 

1,620 SF finished interior floor area.   

The existing structure, constructed c. 1856, and land was originally owned and used for religious 

purposes beginning in the mid-eighteen hundreds, by the First Congregational Church of 

Franklin, which ceased using it and deeded it to the Town in 1972. The Town constructed a 

water booster pumping station on a small portion of the parcel, and used the building and 

remaining property for a municipal historical museum until 2007, when the museum was 

relocated to Downtown Franklin. The Town has not made use of the property and building since 

2007, other than use of the property for the water booster pumping station mentioned above.  

In 2015 the Town contracted with Civitects PC to develop a Comprehensive Investigation and 

Analysis of Existing Conditions (May 2015). The resulting report included assessments of the 

building’s architectural, structural, plumbing, mechanical and electrical assets, identified code 

concerns and accessibility issues, and recommended appropriate repairs and improvements. 

More recently the Town contracted with LLB Architects of Worcester, MA to conduct an 

Existing Conditions Report and Peer Review document (September 2020) of the former South 

Franklin Congregational Meeting House. Both documents are available for viewing and 

downloading on the Town’s website.  

The Town has no current or anticipated use for the Property, other than the water booster 

pumping station, and wishes the building and remaining land be put to productive reuse. The 

Town has chosen to proceed with a REI at this time to solicit informal, yet serious proposals, 

subject to the process detailed herein, from qualified developers and other interested parties who 

wish to purchase or lease and redevelop the property.  

The REI process is critical for a better understanding of existing market conditions, the 

formation of potential development options for the property, and the identification of community 

priorities.  This process will provide the community with the information needed to ensure a 

meaningful and productive public process, which should lead to a formal Request for Proposals 

(RFP) in late spring or summer 2022.  

The Town will consider reuse and redevelopment concepts for the property, except the continued 

operation of the water booster pumping station, which would put the property to productive use, 

and preserve the building’s historic exterior. The reuse and redevelopment will be subject to a 

permanent historic preservation restriction and/or an affordable housing restriction.   

Each Expression of Interest must include a letter of interest, and project description/narrative. 

The letter of interest must be signed by the principals, describe the proponent’s interest in the 

property and the general intentions concerning the future use of the site. This letter shall also 

contain the nature and status of the organization acting as the proponent (whether a non-profit or 



2 

 

charitable institution, a venture, a corporation, a business association, or a joint venture) and the 

jurisdiction in which it is registered to conduct business. The project description must include 

narrative that provides an overview of the proposal, the experience and qualifications of the 

development team, and the capabilities the developer can marshal to achieve project objectives.  

A description of expected financial benefits to the Town, both short-term and long-term, must be 

included in each Expression of Interest. Ultimately, the developer selected will be responsible for 

payment of real estate and personal property taxes on the building, land and contents, or lease 

payments to the Town if appropriate.  

Open House/Site Tours. The Town offers you the opportunity to learn more about the site 

through participation in one of two Open House and Site Tours scheduled for the following 

dates/times: 

o Monday, March 14, 2022 between 10:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m.  

o Monday, April 11, 2022 between 10:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m.  

Property Description and Condition. The Town invites you to examine the information 

contained within the two assessment documents mentioned above; both documents can be found 

on the Town’s website  

 (https://www.franklinma.gov/administrator/pages/special-projects).  

Expressions of Interests Submission Deadline. The Town hopes to hear from individuals and 

organizations who will present compelling and appropriate proposals for the use of 762 

Washington Street.  Please submit Expressions of Interest to the Town Administrator’s Office 

(contact information below) by April 29, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.   

Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator 

Town of Franklin 

355 East Central Street, Franklin, MA 02038 

508-520-4949 

Email: jhellen@franklinma.gov AND jmccann@franklinma.gov  

 

 



Memorandum

July 15, 2022

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

Re: Resolution 22-43: Gift Acceptance - Veterans’ Services Department

The Veterans’ Services Department has received three exceptionally generous donations totaling $2,000 which
will be applied towards the Veterans’ Gift Fund, Veterans’ Municipal Assistance Fund, and the Monument
Restoration Fund, to be used at the Department’s discretion in support of local Veterans and their families.

Donation Summary:

1. VETERANS’ SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Veterans’ Gift Fund
● Elks Riders - $1,000

Veterans’ Municipal Assistance Fund
● Grove Street Auto Repair - $500

Monument Restoration Fund
● Ginley Funeral Homes - $500

DONATION TOTAL $2,000

We would like to thank the Elks Riders, Grove Street Auto Repair and Ginley Funeral Homes for their
exceptionally generous support of our local services.

If you have any additional questions please feel free to ask.



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION 22-43

Acceptance of Gifts - Veterans’ Services Department

WHEREAS, The Veterans’ Services Department has received three generous donations in the total amount
of $2,000.00 to be used at the discretion of the department for programs and services, as follows:

Donation Summary:

VETERANS’ SERVICES DEPARTMENT

1. Veterans' Gift Fund - $1,000
● Donated by the Elks Riders

2. Veterans’ Municipal Assistance Fund - $500
● Donated by Grove Street Auto Repair

3. Monument Restoration Fund - $500
● Donated by Ginley Funeral Homes

Donation Total: $2,000.00

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Town Council of the Town of Franklin on behalf of the Veterans’ Services Department gratefully accepts
these generous donations to be used at the discretion of the Department, as described above.

This resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.

DATED: ____________ , 2022 VOTED: __________________________

UNANIMOUS: _______________

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST: YES: _________ NO: __________

ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____

RECUSED: __________________

__________________________
Nancy Danello, CMC _____________________________
Town Clerk Glenn Jones, Clerk

Franklin Town Council



Memorandum
July 15, 2022

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

Re: Resolution 22-44: TIF - 115 Constitution
_________________________________________________________________________________

The resolution before the Town Council this evening is to authorize the Town Administrator to execute a Tax
Increment Financing (TIF) package to assist the current occupant of 115 Constitution Blvd, Plansee USA LLC, to
expand their business of an additional 7,500 square feet in Franklin.

As many may recall, the TIF is a state program of the Economic Development Incentive Program (EDIP). The TIF
will be required to be approved by the state. This is the local approval of support.

Franklin is grateful for having such an important business in Franklin. The Town should do what it can to assist
them in expanding their business in Franklin. They have submitted the appropriate letter of interest to our office.

Bryan Taberner has included materials attached in this packet.



   

  FR A N K L I N  P L A N N I N G  &  C O M M U N I T Y  DE V E L O P M E N T 
355 EAST CENTRAL STREET, ROOM 120 

FRANKLIN, MA  02038-1352 
TELEPHONE: 508-520-4907 

FAX: 508-520-4906 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:    FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM:    BRYAN W. TABERNER, AICP, DIRECTOR  

RE:    PLANSEE USA LLC, 115 CONSTITUTION BOULEVARD  
PROPOSED TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AGREEMENT 

CC:    JAMIE HELLEN, TOWN ADMINISTRATOR; MARK CEREL, TOWN ATTORNEY; 
KEVIN DOYLE DIRECTOR OF ASSESSING; AMY LOVE, TOWN PLANNER;  
ALECIA ALLEYNE, ASSISTANT TO TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 

DATE:    JULY 14, 2022 
 

 

On June 28, 2022, Kevin Kuros from the Massachusetts Office of Business Development (MOBD) and I met 
with representatives of Plansee USA LLC (Plansee) to discuss Plansee’s plans to expand their operations at 
115 Constitution Boulevard. The company was researching State and Local incentives that may be 
available to manufacturers looking to make major investments in their facilities. Plansee representatives 
agreed the company would work to obtain Investment tax credits from the State, and a tax increment 
financing agreement (TIF agreement) from the Town.  
 
Plansee is a leader in development and production of products which are based on the high performance 
materials Molybdenum, Tungsten and their composites.  Founded in 1921 in Reutte, Austria, Plansee is an 
international company with 32 sites in 24 countries, including two in the United States, and more than 
14,000 employees.  
 
Plansee USA LLC, located at 115 Constitution Boulevard, has outgrown the office portion of its 
manufacturing facility and is proposing to demolish the 7,696+/‐ sf one‐story office and lobby area, and 
construct in its place a new two‐story office building for Plansee’s North America headquarters.  Current 
costs of the improvement project are approximately $6.5 million. 
 
When  Franklin  Town  Council  voted  in  2009  to  establish  Franklin  Industrial  Park  Economic Opportunity 
Area, the Town made a commitment to negotiate a tax increment financing agreement (TIF agreement) 
with any company and or property owner whose development project met the following criteria: 

1. The proposed project meets mandatory requirements within 402 CMR 2.00;  

2. The proposed project will result in creation of new permanent jobs; and  

3. The proposed project will  result  in  redevelopment  of  empty or  underutilized  industrially  zoned 
properties, or development of new research and development or manufacturing facilities. 

Plansee’s proposed 115 Constitution Boulevard project would meet the required criteria.   



Proposed TIF Agreement - Plansee USA LLC - July 2022  2 

On  June  30,  2022  Plansee  submitted  a  letter  of  intent  to  seek  development  incentives  through  the 
Economic Development Incentive Program, including tax increment financing.  Since that time I have been 
working with company representatives, and helping  to guide them through the Economic Development 
Incentive Program process, TIF agreement, and related issues. 

In order to estimate the possible value of a TIF agreement, the Town utilized the Project’s draft site plans 
and project description  to  calculate  the probable post  construction assessed value.    Implementation of 
the  Project  is  expected  to  increase  the  total  assessed  valuation  of  the  Property  from  its  current 
$4,602,500 (FY2022) to approximately $6.65 million.  

Based on the 2022 fiscal year tax rate the Project would  increase the tax revenue from the property by 
over $28,000 each year (see table below).  

Approximate Increased 
Property Value 

Tax Rate per 
$1,000 

Annual Increased Tax 
Revenue 

$2,047,500  $14.05  $28,767.38 

 
I believe  it  is  in  the Town’s best  interest to provide Plansee USA LLC with tax  increment financing.   The 
benefits provided through a TIF agreement are substantial not only for Plansee but also for the Town of 
Franklin.   Benefits to the Town of Franklin as a result of a TIF Agreement  include  increased Commercial 
and  Industrial  tax  revenues,  increased  hotel  tax  revenues,  creation  of  temporary  construction  jobs, 
creation of permanent full‐time jobs, and increased revenues to local businesses.  

Enclosed for review and consideration by Town Council are the following documents: 

 Plansee USA LLC Letter of Intent (June 30, 2022); 

 Franklin Industrial Park Economic Opportunity Area map highlighting 115 Constitution Boulevard; 

 Site Plan Diagram and Rendering of the Proposed Building Façade; 

 Resolution 22‐44, Authorizing Tax Increment Financing.  

Approval of Resolution 22‐44 will approve execution of a TIF Agreement between the Town and Plansee 
and authorize the Town Council chair and the Town Administrator to sign all required documents and to 
take such actions relating to the said agreement.  

Representatives from Plansee and I will be in attendance at the June 20, 2022 Town Council meeting to 
answer questions.  

 
 
 





329-001-000

319-015-000

330-029-000

319-014-000

330-028-000

313-059-000

320-004-000

319-013-000

320-006-000

320-002-000

319-018-000

330-030-000

32
0-0

05
-00

0

319-021-000

319-020-000

320-001-000

329-002-000

319-012-000

319-019-000

319-016-000

319-017-000

313-058-000

U
P
P
E
R

 U
N

IO
N

 S
T

KING ST

CONSTITUTION BLVD

INTERSTATE 495

F
O

R
E

S
T

 S
T

R
A

C
H

A
E

L
 C

IR

F
R

E
E

D
O

M
 W

A
Y

U
N

T

LORI DR

LIBERTY W
AY

D
IS

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 W
A

Y

ION
 

S

Franklin Industrial Park Economic Opportunity Area

JSE 02/26/2009
P:\PW_GIS_01\GIS\PROJECTS\PLANNING\INDUSTRIAL_PARKS\Industrial_Parks.mxd

115 Constitution
    Boulevard

Plansee USA LLC



N

Location of Building Improvements 
highlighted in Blue:

Demolition of One-Story office and lobby 
area (7,696 SF)
Construction of Two-Story Office 
Building (8,920 SF footprint)

Plansee USA LLC
115 Constitution Boulevard   Site Plan Diagram

Source: 
Site Plan Submittal, Highpoint Engineering, 7/1/22
Edited by DPCD, 7/14/22



PLANSEE USA LLC, 115 CONSTITUTION BOULEVARD 
Franklin Industrial Park Economic Opportunity Area 

 

 

Current Facility 

 

 

Proposed Improvements 

 

 

   



What Does Plansee USA LLC Do? 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 TOWN OF FRANKLIN 

 RESOLUTION: 22-44 

 AUTHORIZING TAX INCREMENT FINANCING, 
 PLANSEE USA LLC, 115  CONSTITUTION BOULEVARD 

 WHEREAS,  in  March  2009  the  Town  Council  adopted  Resolution  09-14  establishing 
 Franklin  Industrial  Park  Economic  Opportunity  Area,  an  area  containing  261.43  ±  industrially 
 zoned  acres,  including  a  property  known  as  115  Constitution  Boulevard  shown  on  the  Town  of 
 Franklin Assessor’s Map Number 330 as Parcel 330-030-000 (hereinafter “the Property”); and 

 WHEREAS,  in  April  2009  the  Town  Council  adopted  Resolution  09-25  agreeing  to 
 negotiate  a  tax  increment  financing  agreement  for  each  “Certified  Project”  located  within  the 
 Town  of  Franklin’s  economic  opportunity  areas  that  will  result  in  redevelopment  of  underutilized 
 properties  or  development  of  new  facilities,  creation  of  permanent  jobs,  and  also  meet  mandatory 
 requirements within 402 CMR 2.00; and 

 WHEREAS,  PLANSEE  USA  LLC  (hereafter  referred  to  as  “the  Company”),  a 
 corporation  having  its  principal  office  at  115  Constitution  Boulevard,  Franklin  MA  02038, 
 desires  to  make  substantial  improvements  to  the  Property  and  will  be  equipping  and  operating 
 the  Property  for  its  use  in  manufacturing,  administration,  and  other  potential  uses  and  activities; 
 and 

 WHEREAS,  the  Company’s  proposed  improvements  on  the  Property  are  expected  to 
 increase  the  total  assessed  valuation  of  the  Property  from  its  current  $4,602,500  (FY2022)  to 
 approximately $6.65 million (FY2024); and 

 WHEREAS,  the  Company’s  proposed  Project  is  expected  to  be  “Certified”  by  the 
 Economic  Assistance  Coordinating  Council,  and  at  which  time  would  qualify  for  a  Tax 
 Increment Financing Agreement (TIF Agreement); and 

 WHEREAS,  the  Company  is  desirous  to  enter  into  a  TIF  Agreement  with  the  Town  of 
 Franklin  in  accordance  with  the  Economic  Development  Incentive  Program  and  the  provisions  of 
 Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 23A, Chapter 40, and Chapter 59; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED  THAT  the  Town  Council  of  the  Town  of 
 Franklin  approves  execution  of  a  TIF  Agreement  between  the  Town  of  Franklin  and  the 
 Company; 

 FURTHER,  the  Chairman  of  the  Town  Council,  the  Town  Administrator  and  other 
 Town  Officials  and  staff,  as  may  be  required,  are  authorized  to  sign  all  required  documents  and 
 to take such actions relating to the said agreement; and 



 FURTHER,  the  Town  Council  of  the  Town  of  Franklin  strongly  supports  the 
 Company’s  efforts  to  obtain  State  investment  tax  credits  and  other  development  incentives,  and 
 therefore  approves  the  submission  of  a  Certified  Project  Application  to  the  Economic  Assistance 
 Coordinating Council. 

 This  Resolution  shall  become  effective  according  to  the  provisions  of  the  Town  of  Franklin 
 Home Rule Charter. 

 DATED: ____________ , 2022  VOTED: __________________________ 

 UNANIMOUS: _______________ 

 A TRUE RECORD ATTEST:  YES: _________ NO: __________ 

 ABSTAIN: ____ ABSENT: _____ 

 RECUSED: __________________ 

 __________________________ 
 Nancy Danello, CMC  _____________________________ 
 Town Clerk  Glenn Jones, Clerk 

 Franklin Town Council 



Memorandum
July 15, 2022

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

Re: Resolution 22-45: Transfer of Care, Custody, Management and Control of Davis Thayer School
_________________________________________________________________________________

We are asking the Town Council to approve Resolution 22-45 which will transfer the care, custody, management
and control of the Davis Thayer Elementary School parcel and building from the School Committee to under the
legal purview of the Town Council.

On June 14, 2022 the School Committee voted unanimously that this property is no longer needed for school
purposes.  The School Committee notified the Town Council of this decision in a memo dated June 22, 2022,
attached.

The building is currently being used for storage for both the Town and Schools, which will continue until a
decision is made regarding its permanent future use.  A reminder the building is not ADA accessible and requires
an extensive community discussion about what a future use could be.

After formal acceptance is complete, required steps then include recording at the registry of deeds, follow
through with MSBA and more. We anticipate an open house at some point. It is critical the community take the
future use of D-T step by step and not get too far ahead of ourselves.

It will be our professional recommendation that in lieu of a separate, independent study committee, the Town
Council should be that committee, as all future decisions will require Council approval and the final decision on
its reuse will be from the Council.  We also should note the process of determining a use could take a very long
time.

If you have any questions, please let us know.



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION 22-45

TRANSFER OF CARE, CUSTODY, MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL
OF TOWN-OWNED PROPERTY CONTAINING THE BUILDING KNOWN
AS “DAVIS THAYER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL” FROM THE FRANKLIN
SCHOOL COMMITTEE TO THE FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL, FOR
MUNICIPAL PURPOSES

WHEREAS, the Town owns improved property containing a building known as Davis Thayer Elementary
School, located at the northeasterly corner of the intersection of Union and West Central Streets and shown on
Franklin Assessors’ Maps 278 as Paracel 213 (Title references: Norfolk County Registry of Deeds Book 163,
Pages 32 and 33: Deeds and Plan of Land) (hereinafter: “Property”) for school purposes; and

WHEREAS, GL Chapter 40, Section 15A sets out the procedure to be be followed when Town-owned
property is no longer needed for the specific municipal purpose for which it is held; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin School Committee has determined that Property is no longer needed for school
purposes and, as provided in said statute, has given written notice of its determination to the Franklin Town
Council by memorandum dated June 22, 2022, a true copy of which is attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Franklin, acting by and through its Town Council,
hereby transfers the care, custody, management and control of “Property” from the Franklin School Committee
to the Franklin Town Council, for municipal purpose(s) as provided in GL Chapter 40, Section 15A, and directs
that a true copy of this resolution be recorded at Norfolk County Registry of Deeds.

This resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.

DATED: ____________ , 2022 VOTED: __________________________

UNANIMOUS: _______________

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST: YES: _________ NO: __________

ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____

RECUSED: __________________

__________________________
Nancy Danello, CMC _____________________________
Town Clerk Glenn Jones, Clerk

Franklin Town Council



jmccann
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 1



Memorandum

July 15, 2022

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

Re: Resolution 22-46: Gift Acceptance - Historical Commission
Resolution 22-47: Gift Acceptance - Disability Commission

The Historical Commission and Disability Commission have received exceptionally generous donations in the
amount of $2,000 each. These donations were made by the Emmanuel Bombolakis Trust. Mr. Bombolakis was a
Franklin resident for many years and left these donations in his will to each respective commission.

The donation to the Historical Commision will be applied at the Commission’s discretion towards the
preservation, protection, and development of the historic and archaeological assets of Franklin. The donation to
the Disability Commission will be applied at the Commission’s discretion to advocate for persons with disabilities
as needed in the Town of Franklin.

Donation Summary:

1. Historical Commission - $2,000
2. Disability Commission - $2,000

DONATION TOTAL $4,000

We are extremely appreciative of Mr. Bombolakis’ generosity and support of the Franklin Community.

If you have any additional questions please feel free to ask.



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION 22-46

Acceptance of Gift - Historical Commission

WHEREAS, The Historical Commission has received a generous donation in the amount of $2,000 to be
applied at the Commission’s discretion towards the preservation, protection, and development of the historic
and archaeological assets of Franklin.

Donation Summary:

HISTORICAL COMMISSION - $2,000
● Donated by the Emmanuel Bomobolakis Trust

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Town Council of the Town of Franklin on behalf of the Historical Commission gratefully accepts this
generous donation to be used at the discretion of the Commission, as described above.

This resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.

DATED: ____________ , 2022 VOTED: __________________________

UNANIMOUS: _______________

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST: YES: _________ NO: __________

ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____

RECUSED: __________________

__________________________
Nancy Danello, CMC _____________________________
Town Clerk Glenn Jones, Clerk

Franklin Town Council



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION 22-47

Acceptance of Gift - Disability Commission

WHEREAS, The Disability Commission has received a generous donation in the amount of $2,000 to be
applied at the Commission’s discretion to advocate for persons with disabilities as needed in the Town of
Franklin.

Donation Summary:

DISABILITY COMMISSION - $2,000
● Donated by the Emmanuel Bomobolakis Trust

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Town Council of the Town of Franklin on behalf of the Disability Commission gratefully accepts this
generous donation to be used at the discretion of the Commission, as described above.

This resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.

DATED: ____________ , 2022 VOTED: __________________________

UNANIMOUS: _______________

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST: YES: _________ NO: __________

ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____

RECUSED: __________________

__________________________
Nancy Danello, CMC _____________________________
Town Clerk Glenn Jones, Clerk

Franklin Town Council



Memorandum
July 15, 2022

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

Re: Bylaw Amendment 22-881: Housing Trust Bylaw Change, 1st reading
_________________________________________________________________________________

At the request of the Municipal Affordable Housing Trust, before the Council is the first reading of a proposed
bylaw amendment to create membership positions of Vice Chair and Clerk on the Municipal Affordable Housing
Trust.  The staff also made some housecleaning language that can be seen in the proposed revised paragraph in
the resolution.

If you have any questions, please feel free to let us know.



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
BYLAW AMENDMENT 22-881

A BYLAW TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF FRANKLIN AT
CHAPTER 7 AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND, SECTION 7-5
ORGANIZATION AND SECTION 7-7 MEETINGS, QUORUM

BE IT ENACTED BY THE FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL THAT the Code of the Town of Franklin
Chapter 7 Affordable Housing Trust Fund is hereby amended at Section 7-5 Organization and
Section 7-7 Meetings, Quorum as follows:

§7-5 ORGANIZATION: Delete existing paragraph and insert the following paragraph in its place:

§7-5 ORGANIZATION
The Trustees shall annually elect one Trustee to serve as Chairperson, one Trustee to serve as Vice
Chair, and one Trustee to serve as Clerk; the Town Administrator shall not be eligible to serve in any
of these positions. The Chairperson shall preside at meetings, and shall be responsible for calling all
meetings except as provided in paragraph 7-7, and for timely preparation and posting of meeting
agendas and otherwise complying with the notice requirements of the Open Meeting Law, GL
Chapter 30A §§ 18 through 25. The Vice Chair shall preside at meetings and perform the other
duties of the Chairperson in the absence or recusal of the Chairperson. The Clerk shall have the
responsibility to ensure that accurate and timely meeting minutes are prepared. The Chairperson
may establish subcommittees and/or ad hoc task related committees to carry out the purposes of the
Trust Fund. Chairpersons of the subcommittees may be selected by the members of the
subcommittees.

§7-7 MEETINGS, QUORUM
Delete “MGL c. 39 §23, the Open Meeting Law” and replace with “the Open Meeting Law, GL
Chapter 30A §§ 18 through 25.”

This bylaw shall become effective in accordance with the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home
Rule Charter.

DATED:  _________________, 2022
VOTED:

UNANIMOUS _________

A True Record Attest: YES ______   NO _______

ABSTAIN _____________

ABSENT ______________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk _____________________________

Glenn Jones, Clerk
Franklin Town Council



Memorandum
July 15, 2022

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Alecia Alleyne, Assistant to the Town Administrator

Re: Bylaw Amendment 22-882: General Code Fixes, 1st Reading
_________________________________________________________________________________

At the suggestion of the Town Attorney, Town Clerk and Town Administrator, we are requesting the Council
approve the first reading of a proposed bylaw, which would authorize the Town Clerk to renumber or otherwise
reformat a bylaw amendment in the event General Code points our inconsistencies in our bylaws as part of their
quality control process on updating the Town’s online Code system.

The bylaw does NOT allow the Town Clerk to amend bylaws, but to ONLY revise them administratively in the
event multiple bylaws do not reference one another in certain sections. General Code, or eCode360, is the
Town’s online code database and they do a wonderful job. As part of that contract, they quality control
everything that goes online. It's a great service.  A bylaw such as this exists in many communities, notably larger
ones and this has been a frequent resolution to administratively renumbering or reordering bylaws that are
extremely long.

If you have any questions, please feel free to let us know.

https://ecode360.com/FR1096?needHash=true
https://ecode360.com/FR1096?needHash=true
https://ecode360.com/FR1096?needHash=true


TOWN OF FRANKLIN
BYLAW AMENDMENT 22-882

A BYLAW TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF FRANKLIN AT
CHAPTER 4, ADMINISTRATION OF GOVERNMENT ARTICLE IV
PROSECUTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS SECTION 4-13
AMENDMENT

BE IT ENACTED BY THE FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL THAT the Code of the Town of Franklin
Chapter 4 Administration of Government Article IV Prosecution and Amendment of Bylaws, Section
4-13 Amendment is hereby amended by adding a second sentence as follows:

Section 4-13: Amendment. These bylaws may be amended in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Article Two, Section 6 of the Charter. Whenever the Town Council
votes to amend these bylaws, the Town Clerk is authorized to renumber, re-letter, and/or
to take any other action necessary to reformat the amendment and/or any existing
section(s) or provision(s) within an existing chapter of the Code of the Town of
Franklin to fit within the established format of the Code.

This bylaw shall become effective in accordance with the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home
Rule Charter.

DATED:  _________________, 2022
VOTED:

UNANIMOUS _________

A True Record Attest: YES ______   NO _______

ABSTAIN _____________

ABSENT ______________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk _____________________________

Glenn Jones, Clerk
Franklin Town Council



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION 22-55

Town Council’s Local Authorization and Approval for Conduct
of 2022 State Elections, as Required by Chapter 92 of

Legislative Acts of 2022

WHEREAS, the Massachusetts General Court has enacted Chapter 92 of Legislative Acts of 2022 entitled
“An Act Fostering Voter Opportunities, Trust, Equity and Security” which imposes certain
obligations on local authorities with respect to the conduct of state elections, including
authorization of police detail(s) and approval of early in-person voting schedule.

NOW THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Franklin Town Council, acting on behalf of the Town of Franklin
that:

1. As provided in GL Chapter 54 Section 72, as amended by Chapter 92 of Legislative Acts of 2022, the
Town Council hereby authorizes the minimum number of Police Officers that will be present at the
polling location (Franklin High School) for the 2022 election as follows:

○ State Primary 9/6/2022: 2 Officers (1 inside and 1 outside)
○ State Election 11/8/2022: 4 Officers (2 inside and 2 outside)

2. The Town Council approves the early in-person voting schedule for the State Primary Election attached
hereto as “Exhibit 1”.

This resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.

DATED: ____________ , 2022 VOTED: __________________________

UNANIMOUS: _______________

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST: YES: _________ NO: __________

ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____

RECUSED: __________________

__________________________
Nancy Danello, CMC _____________________________
Town Clerk Glenn Jones, Clerk

Franklin Town Council



jmccann
Typewritten Text

jmccann
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 1



Town of Franklin Affordable Housing

Friendly Chapter 40B Projects - Local Initiative Program (LIP)

According to the Massachusetts Department of Housing & Community Development (DHCD),
the Town of Franklin currently has 11.97% of the Town’s year-round housing units on the
Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI). Because Franklin is above the 10% affordable housing
threshold, it can permit so-called “Friendly 40B” projects to build mixed-income housing.

Unlike traditional 40B projects, this allows municipalities to remain in control of most aspects of
project design and construction. A “Friendly 40B” project is a project that has local support
because of the contribution it can make to the community’s need for more diverse housing
options, and the contributions the developer agrees to make to local needs (infrastructure, public
safety, land protection, etc.).

All 40B developments are required to create housing where at least 25% of housing units are
affordable according to DHCD regulations, but not all projects are equal in other ways including:
type and size housing units; location; proximity to transit; traffic impacts; public space;
recreation or open space resources; aesthetics; building design; community character; wetland
protection; safety; walkability; sustainability; low impact development.

The Town is not under pressure to increase its SHI by immediately approving additional 40B
developments. Given that the Town has been made aware of several possible Friendly Chapter
40B projects, the Town’s Development Staff has put together a preliminary process to determine
if the project meets the needs of the Town and follows the LIP process.

On pages 3 and 4 of this document is the new Friendly 40B Project Preliminary Review
Checklist. Developers hoping to permit a Friendly 40B in Franklin should take the time to
complete and return it, and any related documents (e.g., preliminary site plans; ANRAD; project
summary), to the Town’s Point of Contact for Chapter 40B Development Issues.

Once the Town’s Point of Contact receives the completed form the Town will begin a 30 day
review of the proposed development. The 30 day review includes a review of the proposal by
Town Staff, a presentation by the applicant to the Technical Staff Review Committee, and
non-binding reviews by the Planning Board and Conservation Commission.

1



Franklin’s Town Administrator has appointed the Town Planner as a single point of contact to
serve as the primary municipal liaison for all issues relating to Chapter 40B affordable housing
development matters. The Municipal Point of Contact will assist developers/applicants to sort
out the 40B process and related requirements. Casual early pre-permit discussions with
the Municipal Point of Contact are highly recommended.

Municipal Point of Contact for Chapter 40B Development Issues:
 
  Amy Love, Town Planner
  Planning and Community Development
  Town of Franklin
  355 East Central Street
  Franklin, MA  02038-1352
  Phone: 508-520-4907
  Email: alove@franklinma.gov

2

mailto:alove@franklinma.gov


Friendly 40B Project Preliminary Review Checklist
Below outlines the Town of Franklin recommended Checklist to proceed with a LIP application:

1. Project Information
a. Project Name: _____________________________________________
b. Applicant Point of Contact Name: _____________________________

Phone number _____________  Email  ___________________
c. Project Team - Names, Titles, Contact information.
d. Project Location: _____________________________________
e. Number of Units: _________
f. Bedroom Count:  1 Bedroom ___  2 Bedrooms ___ 3 Bedrooms ___
g. Rental or Ownership
h. List of all waivers, if any, that the applicant will request from the ZBA
i. Preliminary Plans.

2. Criteria for Review
a. Percent of Affordable Units _______
b. Number of Affordable Units _______
c. Number of units to count on the SHI _______
d. Public Benefits & Impacts

i. Roadway Improvements
ii. Other Infrastructure Improvements

iii. Public Access/Trails/Open Space
iv. Other Public Amenities
v. Positive and or Negative Impacts on the Town

vi. Impacts on the abutting property owners
vii. Safety/Fire Impacts to Town.

3. 30-Day Preliminary Project Review Process
a. Once the Applicant has submitted required information to the Municipal Point of

Contact, the Applicant's information will be distributed to the Town’s
Administration and Technical staff, Franklin Planning Board, and Franklin
Conservation Commission.

b. Technical Staff Review and Comment
i. Town staff will be asked for written comments on the proposed housing

project.

c. Technical Staff Review Committee Meeting
i. The Applicant will be asked to attend a Technical Staff Review Committee

meeting, held on Wednesdays at 3:00 p.m. The Municipal Point of Contact
will coordinate with the Applicant.

3



d. Planning Board - A non-binding review from the Planning Board
i. The Applicant will be asked to attend a Planning Board Meeting to present

the proposed housing project. The Municipal Point of Contact will
coordinate with the Applicant.

ii. Planning Board members will perform a non-binding project review.
Review to include

1. Compliance with Section 185-31 of Town Zoning By-Law
2. Special Permit Criteria
3. Stormwater Review
4. Parking review
5. Traffic Review.
6. Architectural Review

e. Conservation Commission (if required) - non-binding review from the
Commission

i. If the proposed project is within the 100 feet buffer zone or will impact
other jurisdictional resources, the Applicant will be asked to attend a
Conservation Commission Meeting to present the proposed housing
project. The Municipal Point of Contact will coordinate with the
Applicant.

ii. Conservation Commission members will perform a non-binding project
review under Chapter 181 (Wetlands Protection Bylaw) of the Franklin
Code and the Town of Franklin Conservation Commission Regulations..
Review to include

1. Wetland Resource Impacts
2. Completed ANRAD
3. Wetland Crossings
4. Area Wetland maps and disturbance.

4. Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD)
a. The Applicant is required to obtain a letter from DHCD acknowledging the

number of units that will be accepted on the Town’s SHI List.

5. Town Council Presentation & LIP Determination
a. Applicant should present an overview of the proposed project and outline the

benefits for the Public
b. Gather feedback from Town Council members
c. Formal Vote from the Town Council.

6. Zoning Board of Appeals Approval
a. Applicant shall submit a Comprehensive Permit to the ZBA for review and

decision.

4



Please note, the Applicant is free to submit an application directly to the Zoning Board of
Appeals.  However, if the Applicant wants the support from the Town and file under the
LIP, it is highly suggested they follow this checklist.

Note that any activities subject to Conservation Commission review under the Wetlands
Protection Act, M.G.L. Chapter 131, Section 40, will need to be reviewed by the
Conservation Commission independent from an LIP application.

5


	_ 2022-07-20 Town Council Agenda   (1)
	3a. June 8, 2022 TC Meeting Minutes -Draft for Review (2)
	3b. June 22, 2022 TC Meeting Minutes -Draft for Review (1)
	5a. Appointment Election
	8b. Old South Church
	9a. 22-43
	9b. 1 22-44
	9c. 1 22-45 MEMO - Davis Thayer
	9d-e. Memo 22-46 & 47, Res 22-46
	9e. 22-47
	9f. 22-881
	9g. 22-882
	9h. 22-55
	10a. 40B



